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KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
LinDa K. SCHNEIDER
Senior Assistant Attorney General
MARC D, GREENBAUM
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 138213
300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 897-2579
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 5760
NEAL SHIGERU NISHIMOTO
43543 20th St. West

Lancaster, CA 93536 ACCUSATION
Pharmacist License No. RPH 45627

Respondent.

Complainant alleges:

PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity
as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs,

2. Onor about August 19, 1992, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License
Number RPH 45627 to Neal Shigeru Nishimoto (Respondent). The Pharmacist License was in
full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on October
31, 2017, unless renewed.

JURISDICTION

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of

. Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section references are to the. . .

Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.
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4. Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Board shall administer and enforce both
the Pharmacy Law [Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4000 et seq.] and the Uniform Controlled Substances
Act [Health & Safety Code, § 11000 et seq.].

5. Section 4300 of the Code provides that every license issued by the Board may be
suspended or revoked.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS

6.  Section 4301 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board shall take action
against any holder of a license who is guilty of "unprofessional conduct,” defined to include, but

not be limited to, any of the following:

(g) Knowingly making or signing any certificate or other document that falsely represents
the existence or nonexistence of a state of facts.

(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any dangerous
drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be dangerous or injurious to
oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any other person or to the public, or
to the extent that the use impairs the ability of the person to conduct with safety to the public the

practice authorized by the license,

(k) The conviction of more than one misdemeanor or any felony involving the use,
consumption, or self-administration of any dangerous drug or alcoholic beverage, or any
combination of those substances.

(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties
of'a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13
(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled
substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or
dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the

record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conyiction occurred.
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The board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order
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to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances
or dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the
qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or
a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning
of this provision. The board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the
judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made
suspending the imposition of sentence, itrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of
the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not
guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information, or

indictment.

(0) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the
violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable
federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including regulations established by

the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.

7. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, states:

For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license
pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions Code, a
crime or act shall be considered substantially related to the qualifications, functions or dutics of a
licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a
licensee or registrant to perform the functions authorized by his license or registration in a manner
consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare.

COST RECOVERY

8. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that a Board may request the
administrative law judge to dircct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of

the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and _
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enforcement of the case.
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FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Crtminal Conviction)

9. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301, subsection
(1), in that she has been convicted of crimes substantially related to the qualifications, functions,
and duties of a licensee. The circumstances are as follows:

10.  On or about January 15, 2015, in Los Angeles County Superior Court Case No.
4AV 06558, Respondent was convicted of having violated California Vehicle Code section
23152(b) (driving with excessive blood alcohol level). Respondent admitted to having a previous
conviction for a DUI offense in 2008. The conviction was based on an incident which occurred
on or about September 26, 2014, during which Respondent drove a vehicle when his blood
alcohol level was .19%.

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Convictions Involving Dangerous Drugs or Alcohol)
11.  Respondent is subject to disciplinary éction under Code section 4301, subsection (k),
in that he has been convicted of more than one crime involving the use, consumption or self-
administration of dangerous drugs and/or alcoholic beverages, as set forth above in paragraph 10,

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Dangerous Use of Alcohol)

12, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301, subsection (h),
in that he administered to himself, or used, alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to
be dangerous or injurious to herself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any
other person or to the public, and/or to the extent that the use impaired his ability to conduct with
safety to the public the practice authorized by his license, as set forth above in paragraph 10.

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Misrepresentation on Renewal Application)
13.  Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301(g), inrthat he
_knowingly made or signed a certificate or other document that falsely represented the existence or
nonexistence of a state of facts. The circumstances are as follows:
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14, On or about October 1, 2015, Respondent signed and submitted an application to
renew his pharmacist license. In the application, Respondent checked “no” in response to the
following question: “Since you last renewed your license, have you had any license disciplined
by a government agency or other disciplinary body; or, have you been convicted of any crime in
any state, the USA and its territories, military court or a foreign country?” In actuality,
Respondent had been convicted of a crime, as set forth above in paragraph 10.

DISCIPLINE CONSIDERATIONS

15.  To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent,
Complainant alleges as follows:

16.  On or about April 10, 2001, in Mono Superior Court case number EJ1061,
Respondent was convicted of having violated California Vehicle Code section 23152(a) (driving
while intoxicated).

17. On or about September 10, 2001, in Mono Superior Court case number EJ1061,
Respondent was convicted of having violated California Vehicle Code section 23152(a) (driving
while intoxicated with prior DUI convictions), a felony,

18.  On or about May 5, 2008, in Los Angeles Superior Court case number 8AV(01925,
Respondent was convicted of having violated California Vehicle Code section 23152(b) (driving
with excessive blood alcohol level). The conviction was based on an incident in which occurred
on or about January 24, 2008, during which Respondent drove a vehicle while his blood alcohol
level was .17%, -

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist Licensc Number RPH 45627, issued to Neal
Shigeru Nishimoto;

2. Ordering Neal Shigeru Nishimoto to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs
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section 125.3;
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3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

DATED: /// 3/ 6

LA2016600828
41524244.doc

BRI

VIRGINIA HEROLD

Executive Officer

Board of Pharmacy

Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complainant
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